

# Southville Primary School Play Policy

Policy written by:	Gareth Potter (Deputy Headteacher, Pastoral)		
Ratified by Governing Body	27.2.24		
Future review date:	February 2025		
Signed (Headteacher):	An France	Date: 27.2.24	
Signed (Chair of Governors):		Date: 27.2.24	

#### **Contents**

Rationale	2
Commitment	2
Background	3
What is Play?	4
Rights, Equality and Access	4
Links to Learning	5
Health, Safety, Benefit and Risk	5
Managing Risk in Play Provision	6
The Adults' Role in Play	6
Environment	
Loose Parts	8
Monitoring	8
Health and Safety	
APPENDIX 1 - Play Types	9
APPENDIX 2: Benefit-Risk Assessment: Environment and Equipment	

#### **Rationale**

Southville Primary School recognises the importance of the need for high quality sustainable play for children, regardless of their needs and abilities, and that inclusive play is achieved by offering carefully considered outdoor spaces that offer a real choice of accessible play opportunities.

We firmly believe that play is essential for physical, emotional, spiritual and intellectual development.

Links to other policy documents

- Behaviour policy
- Health and Safety
- Risk-benefit assessment

#### **Commitment**

Southville Primary School is committed to using this Play Policy as a key document in all decisions it makes which have an impact on children's play. At Southville Primary School, we want to help children to be **safe**, **creative**, **independent**, **kind**, **successful and community focussed** citizens which reflects our school's vision and values. We believe play has a vital role in children's happiness and wellbeing. It creates children who are independent, confident, imaginative, adaptable, social and able to assess risks. We want to ensure every child is making appropriate progress in line with school achievement aims. We aim to give our children confidence and a desire to achieve their full potential.

#### We aim to:

- Implement the changes set out in this policy gradually and systematically
- Be informed by the children and work with the children to create spaces that are exciting,
   engaging and enthuses children, where they feel safe to take risks and explore their world
- Work in partnership with parents and the community making use of local expertise
- Build projects collaboratively, respecting existing boundaries

#### **Background**

Children spend up to 20% of their time in school at play. This time is invaluable and needs clear thought and planning. Changes in society such as heavier traffic, busier lifestyles, less areas for play and awareness of risk have led to 'play poverty' for today's children. This makes their play opportunities at school even more vital.

Better play leads to happier children and in turn less behaviour problems, a more positive attitude to school, skills development, fewer accidents and more effective learning in the classroom as less staff time is spent resolving issues.

Play England drew up The Charter for Children's Play which sets out a vision for play and states that:

- Children need time and space to play at school
- Adults should let children play
- Children value and benefit from staffed play provision
- Children's play is enriched by skilled playworkers
- Children sometimes need extra support to enjoy their right to play

Southville Primary School fully recognises its duties and responsibilities to support children's playtime while they are at our school.

Recent research suggests that children's access to good play provision can:

- increase their self-awareness, self-esteem, and self-respect
- improve and maintain their physical and mental health
- give them the opportunity to mix with other children
- allow them to increase their confidence through developing new skills

At Southville Primary School we want play to drive our whole school values through:

- promoting each individual's ability to **connect** with their peers and those around them.
- Encourage the children to **care** for their peers and the equipment
- Provide opportunities for the children to use their imagination, independence and creativity within the playground space

- Encourage the children to be courageous in their play through risk taking and challenge,
   problem solving, and dealing with new and novel situations
- provide opportunities for children of all abilities and backgrounds to play together
- provide opportunities for developing social skills and learning
- build resilience
- provide opportunities to learn about their environment and the wider community.

## What is Play?

The Government's Play Strategy defines play as:

`encompassing children's behaviour which is freely chosen, personally directed and intrinsically motivated. It is performed for no external goal or reward, and is a fundamental and integral part of healthy development – not only for individual children but also for the society in which they live'.

Play is recognised as any activity that a child enters into that is freely chosen, personally directed and intrinsically motivated and that actively engages the child.

Play activity meets the four components of a child's development:

- Physical (direct impact on physical development, co-ordination and fitness)
- Intellectual (cognitive development, imagination)
- Educational (the knowledge and understanding of academic outcomes)
- Social (the development of values, beliefs and self-perception and the parallel communication skills, leadership and teamwork this enhances).

At Southville Primary School, we recognise that **great** play involves:

- Children being creative and cooperative
- The adult being responsive to children's invitations and requests
- It may be solitary or social
- It invites investigation
- It makes children happy and happy children are better learners

#### **Rights, Equality and Access**

Article 31 of the United Nations 'Convention on the Rights of the Child' states that children have the right to relax and play, and to join in a wide range of cultural, artistic and other recreational activities. Southville Primary School acknowledges that every child has the right to choose the kind of play that is suitable for them whatever their age, gender, physical capability or background making play opportunities available for everyone.

#### **Links to Learning**

Play is recognised for the important contribution it makes to education and lifelong learning; a finding confirmed by many studies of early childhood. Research shows that play can enhance problem solving; it is also widely regarded as providing opportunities for social interaction and language development. The contribution of play to educational development is suggested through the inherent value of different play types, e.g. through risk taking and exploratory play in formal and informal settings, allowing children to experiment, try new things, challenge themselves and push their boundaries.

Research also suggests that "the learning outcomes from play are enhanced when play is 'properly directed' by adults." This can be achieved when adults are involved in 'play' supporting and enhancing opportunities to use imagination or creativity.

The other area of focus for the impact of play and playwork on education and learning is the role of play at school break periods and the impact on children's behaviour and learning in class. One of the current concerns voiced is that children's opportunities for imaginative play and its educational benefits are being limited because of the demands of the school curriculum threatening to make school playtimes shorter.

As a result of implementing this policy we believe that children will:

- be happier
- increase self-awareness and self-esteem
- improve language and communication skills
- improve concentration
- improve their imagination, independence and creativity
- improve social skills
- be resilient, confident, good problem solver
- be ready for anything as a result of negotiation and independence of thought
- be better at problem solving
- develop life skills
- improve their physical development, co-ordination and fitness.

## Health, Safety, Benefit and Risk

Southville Primary School rigorously monitors all aspects of Health and Safety within all areas of play and our play provision. The playgrounds are health and safety checked on a daily basis with the site team monitoring the equipment. Where equipment is found to be faulty it is removed from the play space, fixed and returned or permanently removed from the space.

As part of our commitment to children's safety equipment and use of equipment will be monitored within the play sessions but also through the school day. Children are encouraged to keep the play spaces tidy at the end of the sessions free from health and safety hazards. Signs will be used within the spaces to ensure children put the equipment away responsibly. Children will be reminded about behaviour expectations especially when using the equipment within assemblies and during the play session. Where children's behaviour does not reach the high expectation set by the school and where the play is deemed unsafe then the staff will implement a staged

behaviour approach. Should a child use a piece of equipment negatively a reviewing process will be implemented and where appropriate equipment is removed from the play space.

When putting in a new piece of equipment in to the playground space a Risk-benefit assessment is carried out.

Risk-taking can be a feature of play provision within many areas of the school environments in which children legitimately spend time playing. Our play provision aims to offer children the chance to encounter acceptable risks as part of a creative, imaginative, stimulating, challenging and controlled playing and learning environment. Therefore, play provision should aim to successfully manage the balance between the need to offer risk and the need to keep children safe from serious harm.

Research shows that the uncertainty and challenge of much of children's play is a very large part of its appeal to them, and that it also enhances the development of their brains and bodies, making them more adaptable and resilient as they grow. Risk and challenge is not limited to physical risk – it includes the uncertainties involved in making new friends, playing with children from different backgrounds and building emotional resilience through trying out new experiences with the possibility of failure.

Children should be encouraged and supported to encounter and manage risk for themselves in an environment that is as safe as it needs to be rather than completely devoid of risk.

## **Managing Risk in Play Provision**

Within our play spaces there are opportunities for children to take risks when they play. Our play provision aims to respond to these needs and wishes by offering children stimulating, challenging environments for exploring and developing their abilities. In doing this, play provision aims to manage the level of risk so that children are not exposed to unacceptable risks of death or serious injury.

An essential element of exploration within the medium of play is the opportunity for children to experience freely-chosen activities, where they can take acceptable risks and challenge themselves beyond their existing capabilities. Allowing children to take acceptable risks can develop their ability to independently judge risks and learn new skills.

'Without opportunities to take acceptable levels of risk children's development is inhibited, undermining their capacity to deal with the wider unsupervised world.'

Southville Primary School take the children's Health and Safety extremely seriously and will carry out a Risk-Benefit assessment. This will identify risks and appropriate actions to mitigate. Where the risk is deemed too 'great' the equipment / activity will be removed or stopped.

#### The Adults' Role in Play

We believe that it is the job of our staff to become 'Play Workers' to ensure that the broadest possible range of play opportunities are available to children, to observe, reflect and analyse the play that is happening and select a mode of intervention or make a change to the play space if needed. 'Play workers' ensure that the play space is inclusive – supporting all children to make the most of the opportunities available in their own way. At Southville Primary School we will use the nationally recognised Playwork Principles as key guidance in the development of play staffing.

These are:

- All children and young people need to play. The impulse to play is innate. Play is a biological, psychological and social necessity, and is fundamental to the healthy development and well-being of individuals and communities.
- Play is a process that is freely chosen, personally directed and intrinsically motivated.
   That is, children and young people determine and control the content and intent of their play, by following their own instincts, ideas and interests, in their own way for their own reasons.
- The prime focus and essence of playwork is to support and facilitate the play process and this should inform the development of play policy, strategy, training and education.
- For playworkers, the play process takes precedence and playworkers act as advocates for play when engaging with adult led agendas.
- The role of the playworker is to support all children and young people in the creation of a space in which they can play.
- The playworker's response to children and young people playing is based on a sound up to date knowledge of the play process, and reflective practice.
- Playworkers recognise their own impact on the play space and also the impact of children and young people's play on the playworker.
- Playworkers choose an intervention style that enables children and young people to extend their play. All playworker interventions must balance risk with the developmental benefit and well-being of children.

## **Environment**

At Southville Primary School, we will:

- use the outdoor space as a natural resource for learning and playing
- include the children when planning for playing and learning outdoors
- ensure that the outdoor area offers children the opportunity to investigate and explore,
   problem solve, use their imagination and creativity;
- encourage the children to respect the outdoor environment and care for living things; and
- give children the opportunity to manage, play in and use the space and freedom afforded by the outdoors.
- enrich the quality of the environment to maximise variety of play types and increase play value

Southville Primary School has entered into an agreement with OPAL Outdoor Play and Learning to support the development of the quality of our playtime provision.

We will create plans to transform the school grounds over several years to promote the continued creation and recreation of the play space by the children. Our ultimate aim is to have integrated playground spaces from reception to Year 6. In order to do this we may have to landscape our playground spaces but will provide plenty of open ended materials for play opportunities.

#### **Loose Parts**

Research shows that the greater the range of experiences presented by a play environment, the more children will naturally explore and learn through play. The vital ingredients for these experiences are loose parts: attractive, flexible materials that children can readily change, manipulate and control for themselves.

## **Monitoring**

The school will continue to use the OPAL audit tool and pupil surveys to monitor implantation of its play policy, strategy and action plan. An annual report should be presented to governors.

## **Health and Safety**

All activities, play areas and equipment will be subject to standard checks on a daily and/or periodic basis. These checks will be carried out as part of the site teams normal daily checks. Where equipment is found to be 'not fit for play' this will be taken from the playground space and recycled where possible.

Risk-benefit assessments for areas, equipment and activities will be held on file in the office for inspection.

All new activities which involve potential significant risk will be subject to individual or generic assessment as part of the planning process. All previous assessments will be reviewed as and when appropriate. All new equipment placed in the play spaces will be introduced to the children prior to the children using it within an assembly.

The play workers / Learning support assistants / School Meal Supervisors will be responsible for the site, equipment and resources in general, which are intended to be open access. They will also be responsible for any activities which are directly led by the play workers.

It is the responsibility of all staff to work within agreed policy and procedures and to adhere to all control measures imposed as a result of assessments.

It is the responsibility of the member of staff / playleader on duty to act upon any concerns and to ensure that any deficiencies are rectified immediately and to report to the Senior Staff member as soon as possible.

This policy will be reviewed annually.

#### **APPENDIX 1 - Play Types**

There are acknowledged to be a number of different play types (around 16) which provide playworkers, managers and trainers with a common language for describing play. There are in no particular order.

- **Symbolic Play** play which allows control, gradual exploration and increased understanding without the risk of being out of depth eg using a piece of wood to symbolise a person or an object or a piece of string to symbolise a wedding ring.
- 2 **Rough and Tumble Play** close encounter play which is less to do with fighting and more to do with touching, tickling, gauging relative strength. Discovering physical flexibility and the exhilaration of display. This type of play allows children to participate in physical contact that doesn't involve or result in someone being hurt. This type of play can use up lots of energy.
- 3 **Socio-dramatic Play** the enactment of real and potential experiences of an intense personal, social, domestic or interpersonal nature eg playing at house, going to the shops, being mothers and fathers, organising a meal or even having a row.
- 4 **Social Play** play during which the rules and criteria for social engagement and interaction can be revealed, explored and amended eg any social or interactive situation which contains an expectation on all parties that they will abide by the rules or protocols ie games, conversations, making something together.
- 5 Creative Play play which allows a new response, the transformation of information, awareness of new connections, with an element of surprise. Allows children to design, explore, try out new ideas and use their imagination. They can use lots of different tools, props, equipment. It can have a beginning and an end, texture and smell eg enjoying creation with a range of materials and tools for its own sake. Self expression through any medium, making things, changing things.
- 6 **Communication Play** play using words, nuances or gestures e.g. mime / charades, jokes, play acting, mickey taking, singing, whispering, pointing, debate, street slang, poetry, text messages, talking on mobiles / emails/ internet, skipping games, group and ball games.
- 7 Dramatic Play play which dramatises events in which the child is not a direct participator eg presentation of a TV show, an event on the street, a religious or festive event, even a funeral.
- 8 **Locomotor Play** movement in any or every direction for its own sake eg chase, tag, hide and seek, tree climbing.
- 9 Deep Play play which allows the child to encounter risky or even potentially life threatening experiences, to develop survival skills and conquer fear eg light fires with matches, make weapons, conquer fear such as heights, snakes, and creepy crawlies. Some find strength they never knew they had to climb obstacles, lift large objects etc eg leaping onto an aerial runway, riding a bike on a parapet, balancing on a high beam, roller skating, assault course, high jump.
- 10 **Exploratory Play** play to access factual information consisting of manipulative behaviours such as handling, throwing, banging or mouthing objects eg engaging with an object or area and, either by manipulation or movement, assessing its properties, possibilities and content, such as stacking bricks.
- 11 **Fantasy Play** –This is the make believe world of children. This type of play is where the child's imagination gets to run wild. Play, which rearranges the world in the child's way, a way that is

unlikely to occur eg playing at being a pilot flying around the world, pretend to be various characters/people, be where ever they want to be, drive a car, become be six feet nothing tall or as tiny as they want to be the list is endless as is a child's imagination.

- **Imaginative Play** play where the conventional rules, which govern the physical world, do not apply eg imagining you are or pretending to be a tree or ship, or patting a dog which isn't there.
- **Mastery Play** control of the physical and affective ingredients of the environments eg digging holes, changing the course of streams, constructing shelters, building fires.
- **Object Play** play which uses infinite and interesting sequences of hand-eye manipulations and movements eg examination and novel use of any object eg cloth, paintbrush, cup.
- **Role Play** play exploring ways of being, although not normally of an intense personal, social, domestic or interpersonal nature eg brushing with a broom, dialling with a telephone, driving a car.
- **Recapitulative Play** play that allows the child to explore ancestry, history, rituals, stories, rhymes, fire and darkness. Enables children to access play of earlier human evolutionary stages.



## **APPENDIX 2: Benefit-Risk Assessment: Environment and Equipment**

				<u> </u>
Description of activity, principle or object, who might be at risk and what kind of harm.	Benefit or utility or related policy	Description of risk management and maintenance agreed	Nominated person	Action date
Children managing own risks without close adult supervision.	Children are given the space to independently make choices about their play and implement to play principles outlined in this policy, including how to assess and manage low-level play-related risk.	Play principles for the children are outlined in our play policy and regularly reinforced through assemblies.  Level of adult supervision in children's play.  'Ranging supervision' means that staff are situated across our site in key locations and move around designated areas, engaging with play, carrying out dynamic risk assessments and supporting the schools values and rules introduced to LBS  This level of supervision means that staff focus on the 'sensible and proportionate control of real risks' (Health and Safety Executive – Play Policy).	GP	Ongoing process
Children falling from height.	Opportunity to climb, swing and build at height.	Ribbons are used to identify safe-to-climb trees and safe height to climb to.  Soft flooring is installed underneath every climbing area. Children and staff are aware of unsuitable structures for climbing.  Supervision of staff (see above)	GP/ Site manager Staff	Ongoing process
Harm caused by damaged equipment, sharp edges or splinters.	Loose parts, including pallets, planks, tyres and guttering, provides varied options for creative construction.	Children know to report damaged equipment to staff. Damaged equipment is immediately quarantined for repair or disposal.  All loose parts equipment is checked by site team for exposed nails/screws, splinters etc.	GP/ Site manager Staff	Ongoing process
Children hurt by falling equipment (eg drain pipe propped up at height)	Incorporating the climbing frame and other structures into construction play broadens the opportunities for construction.	Supervision of staff (see above) to coach children on avoiding walking/sitting under objects propped at height and ensuring objects (eg drain pipes) are securely propped with one end on the ground.	Staff	Ongoing process
Children and staff tripping over small world toys.	Small world objects provide role play and world-building opportunities not provided elsewhere in the provision.	Small world objects (including figures, train tracks, toy vehicles etc) to be placed in marked areas using chalk circles, tarpaulin or similar to designate areas in a way that is clearly visible.	GP/ Staff	Ongoing process